

NEVADA LEGISLATURE

Eighty-Second Session, 2023

ASSEMBLY DAILY JOURNAL

THE ONE HUNDRED AND SIXTH DAY

CARSON CITY (Monday), May 22, 2023

Assembly called to order at 11:50 a.m.

Mr. Speaker presiding.

Roll called.

All present except Assemblywoman González, who was excused.

Prayer by the Chaplain, Pastor Ken Haskins.

Our loving, heavenly Father, You are love and we love because You first loved us. In our serving, help us to be loving towards one another. Enable us to promote the best interests of those whom we serve. I pray in Jesus' Name.

AMEN.

Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.

Assemblywoman Jauregui moved that further reading of the Journal be dispensed with and the Speaker and Chief Clerk be authorized to make the necessary corrections and additions.

Motion carried.

Mr. Speaker announced if there were no objections, the Assembly would recess subject to the call of the Chair.

Assembly in recess at 12 noon.

ASSEMBLY IN SESSION

At 12:02 p.m.

Mr. Speaker presiding.

Quorum present.

REPORTS OF COMMITTEES

Mr. Speaker:

Your Committee on Government Affairs, to which were referred Senate Bills Nos. 81, 82, 92, 208, 272, 331, 363, has had the same under consideration, and begs leave to report the same back with the recommendation: Amend, and do pass as amended.

SELENA TORRES, *Chair*

Mr. Speaker:

Your Committee on Growth and Infrastructure, to which were referred Senate Bills Nos. 314, 334, 422, 423, has had the same under consideration, and begs leave to report the same back with the recommendation: Amend, and do pass as amended.

HOWARD WATTS, *Chair*

Mr. Speaker:

Your Committee on Judiciary, to which were referred Senate Bills Nos. 378, 417, has had the same under consideration, and begs leave to report the same back with the recommendation: Amend, and do pass as amended.

BRITTNEY MILLER, *Chair*

Mr. Speaker:

Your Committee on Legislative Operations and Elections, to which was referred Senate Joint Resolution No. 3, has had the same under consideration, and begs leave to report the same back with the recommendation: Amend, and do pass as amended.

MICHELLE GORELOW, *Chair*

Mr. Speaker:

Your Committee on Natural Resources, to which were referred Senate Bills Nos. 76, 269, has had the same under consideration, and begs leave to report the same back with the recommendation: Amend, and do pass as amended.

LESLEY E. COHEN, *Chair*

MOTIONS, RESOLUTIONS AND NOTICES

NOTICE OF EXEMPTION

May 21, 2023

The Fiscal Analysis Division, pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.6, has determined the eligibility for exemption of Senate Bill No. 35.

SARAH COFFMAN
Fiscal Analysis Division

May 22, 2023

The Fiscal Analysis Division, pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.6, has determined the eligibility for exemption of Senate Bill No. 388.

SARAH COFFMAN
Fiscal Analysis Division

WAIVER OF JOINT STANDING RULES

A Waiver requested by: Senator Cannizzaro.

For: Assembly Bill No. 330.

To Waive:

Subsection 3 of Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3 (out of final committee of 2nd house by 103rd day).

Subsection 4 of Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3 (out of 2nd house by 110th day).

Has been granted effective: May 19, 2023.

SENATOR NICOLE J. CANNIZZARO
Senate Majority Leader

ASSEMBLYMAN STEVE YEAGER
Speaker of the Assembly

A Waiver requested by: Speaker Yeager.

For: Senate Bill No. 294.

To Waive:

Subsection 3 of Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3 (out of final committee of 2nd house by 103rd day).

Subsection 4 of Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3 (out of 2nd house by 110th day).

Has been granted effective: May 19, 2023.

SENATOR NICOLE J. CANNIZZARO
Senate Majority Leader

ASSEMBLYMAN STEVE YEAGER
Speaker of the Assembly

A Waiver requested by: Speaker Yeager.

For: Senate Bill No. 371.

To Waive:

Subsection 3 of Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3 (out of final committee of 2nd house by 103rd day).

Subsection 4 of Joint Standing Rule No. 14.3 (out of 2nd house by 110th day).

Has been granted effective: May 19, 2023.

SENATOR NICOLE J. CANNIZZARO
Senate Majority Leader

ASSEMBLYMAN STEVE YEAGER
Speaker of the Assembly

Assemblywoman Jauregui moved that the person as set forth on the Nevada Legislature's Press Accreditation List of May 22, 2023, be accepted as an accredited press representative, assigned space at the press table in the Assembly Chamber, allowed the use of appropriate broadcasting facilities, and that the list be included in this day's journal.

LAS VEGAS SUN: Justin Hager.

Motion carried.

SECOND READING AND AMENDMENT

Senate Bill No. 5.

Bill read second time and ordered to third reading.

Senate Bill No. 29.

Bill read second time and ordered to third reading.

Senate Bill No. 34.

Bill read second time.

The following amendment was proposed by the Committee on Judiciary:

Amendment No. 543.

AN ACT relating to legal services; authorizing the Attorney General or the chief legal officer or other authorized representative of a political subdivision of this State to provide legal representation to certain officers or employees of the State or a political subdivision thereof in certain actions or proceedings; **revising provisions relating to special counsel employed by the Attorney General;** revising provisions governing the legal representation of certain persons by the Attorney General; and providing other matters properly relating thereto.

Legislative Counsel's Digest:

Existing law requires the Attorney General or the chief legal officer or other authorized representative of a political subdivision of this State to provide legal counsel to certain officers or employees of the State or a political subdivision of the State who are named as defendants in a civil action and certain other persons who are not officers or employees of the State or a political subdivision. Existing law authorizes the Attorney General, chief legal officer or other authorized representative to employ special counsel with

respect to such civil actions if the Attorney General, chief legal officer or other authorized representative, as applicable, determines that it is impracticable, uneconomical or could constitute a conflict of interest for the legal service to be provided by the Attorney General, chief legal officer or other authorized representative. (NRS 41.0339)

Section 1 of this bill authorizes the Attorney General or the chief legal officer or other authorized representative of a political subdivision of the State to represent certain officers or employees of the State or a political subdivision thereof who are summoned or subpoenaed to appear in an action or proceeding in which the person is not a named defendant if: (1) the person submits a written request for representation; and (2) the Attorney General, chief legal officer or other authorized representative, as applicable, determines that such representation is in the best interest of the State or a political subdivision of the State. **Section 1** also authorizes the Attorney General, chief legal officer or other authorized representative to employ special counsel with respect to such actions or proceedings if the Attorney General, chief legal officer or other authorized representative, as applicable, determines that it is impracticable, uneconomical or could constitute a conflict of interest for the legal service to be provided by the Attorney General, chief legal officer or other authorized representative. **Section 2** of this bill makes a conforming change to indicate the appropriate placement of **section 1** in the Nevada Revised Statutes.

Existing law defines the term “state judicial officer” to mean a justice of the Supreme Court, senior justice, judge of a district court or senior judge. (NRS 41.03385) Section 3.3 of this bill revises the term to include a judge or senior judge of the Court of Appeals.

Existing law requires that certain determinations relating to the employment of special counsel be made by the Attorney General prior to trial. (NRS 41.03435) Section 3.7 of this bill removes the requirement that such determinations be made prior to trial.

In general, existing law: (1) provides that the Attorney General and his or her deputies are the legal advisers on all state matters arising in the Executive Department of the State Government; and (2) prohibits persons in the Executive Department from employing other counsel to represent the State or any agency in the Executive Department unless the Attorney General and the deputies of the Attorney General are disqualified to act in the matter. (NRS 228.110) **Section 4** of this bill authorizes a person in the Executive Department to employ counsel other than the Attorney General to represent the State or any agency in the Executive Department if the Attorney General determines that it is impracticable, uneconomical or could constitute a conflict of interest for the Attorney General or a deputy of the Attorney General to serve as the legal adviser on the matter. **Section 4** also requires compensation for such counsel to be paid out of: (1) the Reserve for Statutory Contingency Account; or (2) available federal grants or a permanent fund in the State Treasury other than the State General Fund.

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NEVADA, REPRESENTED IN
SENATE AND ASSEMBLY, DO ENACT AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Chapter 41 of NRS is hereby amended by adding thereto a new section to read as follows:

1. The official attorney may represent any present or former local judicial officer, state judicial officer, ~~immune contractor or~~ officer or employee of the State or a political subdivision, immune contractor or State Legislator summoned or subpoenaed to appear in an action or proceeding in which the person is not a named defendant, if:

(a) Within 7 days after the delivery or service of the summons or subpoena, the person submits a written request for representation to the official attorney, and, if the person has an administrative supervisor, his or her administrative supervisor, unless a waiver is granted pursuant to subsection 9; and

(b) The official attorney determines that such representation is in the best interest of the State or a political subdivision of the State.

2. As soon as reasonably practicable after receiving a request pursuant to subsection 1, the official attorney shall determine whether to represent the person who submitted the request and provide written notice of his or her determination to that person.

3. No fact pertaining to the arrangements or circumstances by which the State or a political subdivision or any attorney thereof represents any person or does not represent a person pursuant to this section is admissible in evidence in any action or proceeding, except in connection with an application to withdraw as the attorney of record.

4. If the official attorney determines that it is impracticable, uneconomical or could constitute a conflict of interest for the official attorney to provide the legal services associated with representing a person pursuant to this section, the official attorney may employ special counsel to render such legal services.

Compensation for special counsel employed by an official attorney pursuant to this subsection must be paid in accordance with the requirements prescribed by NRS 41.03435 or 41.0344, as applicable.

5. At any time after a written request is submitted pursuant to subsection 1, the person requesting representation may employ his or her own counsel to represent him or her in the action or proceeding. At that time, the State or political subdivision is excused from any duty to represent that person and is not liable for any expenses associated with the action or proceeding, including, without limitation, court costs and attorney's fees.

6. The official attorney may apply to a court to withdraw from representing a person pursuant to this section at any time after the official attorney has appeared in an action or proceeding to represent the person upon notice to the person. Such notice must include, without limitation, the reason for the requested withdrawal.

7. If a court grants a motion to withdraw brought by the official attorney pursuant to subsection 6, the State or any political subdivision has no duty to continue to represent the person who is the subject of the motion to withdraw.

8. The provisions of this section do not abrogate or otherwise alter or affect any immunity from, or protection against, any civil action or civil liability which is provided by law to a local judicial officer, state judicial officer, ~~immune contractor or~~ officer or employee of the State or a political subdivision, immune contractor, State Legislator, member of a state board or commission or member of a local board or commission for any act or omission relating to the person's public duties or employment.

9. The official attorney may waive the requirement for notification prescribed by paragraph (a) of subsection 1 for good cause shown.

10. Nothing in this section shall be construed to require an official attorney to represent any present or former local judicial officer, state judicial officer, ~~immune contractor or~~ officer or employee of the State or a political subdivision, immune contractor or State Legislator in any action or proceeding.

11. As used in this section, "action or proceeding" means any action, suit, matter, cause, hearing, appeal or proceeding.

Sec. 2. NRS 41.03375 is hereby amended to read as follows:

41.03375 As used in NRS 41.03375 to 41.03473, inclusive, *and section 1 of this act*, unless the context otherwise requires, the words and terms defined in NRS 41.03377, 41.0338 and 41.03385 have the meanings ascribed to them in those sections.

Sec. 3. (Deleted by amendment.)

Sec. 3.3. NRS 41.03385 is hereby amended to read as follows:

41.03385 "State judicial officer" means a justice or senior justice of the Supreme Court, ~~senior justice,~~ judge or senior judge of the Court of Appeals or judge or senior judge of a district court, ~~for senior judge.~~

Sec. 3.7. NRS 41.03435 is hereby amended to read as follows:

41.03435 The Attorney General may employ special counsel whose compensation must be fixed by the Attorney General, subject to the approval of the State Board of Examiners, if the Attorney General determines ~~at any time prior to trial~~ that it is impracticable, uneconomical or could constitute a conflict of interest for the legal service to be rendered by the Attorney General or a deputy attorney general. Compensation for special counsel must be paid out of:

1. The Reserve for Statutory Contingency Account; or
2. Available federal grants or a permanent fund in the State Treasury other than the State General Fund.

Sec. 4. NRS 228.110 is hereby amended to read as follows:

228.110 1. Except as otherwise provided in NRS 228.111 to 228.1118, inclusive, and 228.112 to 228.1127, inclusive, or by specific statute:

(a) The Attorney General and the duly appointed deputies of the Attorney General shall be the legal advisers on all state matters arising in the Executive Department of the State Government.

(b) No officer, commissioner or appointee of the Executive Department of the Government of the State of Nevada shall employ any attorney at law or counselor at law to represent the State of Nevada within the State, or to be compensated by state funds, directly or indirectly, as an attorney acting within the State for the State of Nevada or any agency in the Executive Department thereof unless ~~the~~ :

(1) *The* Attorney General and the deputies of the Attorney General are disqualified to act in such matter ~~[-]~~ ; *or*

(2) *The Attorney General determines that it is impracticable, uneconomical or could constitute a conflict of interest for the Attorney General or a deputy of the Attorney General to serve as the legal adviser in such matter.*

2. *Compensation for any attorney or counselor at law employed as special counsel by the Attorney General must be paid in accordance with the requirements prescribed by NRS 41.03435.*

3. All claims for legal services rendered in violation of this section shall be void.

Sec. 5. 1. This section and ~~section~~ **sections 3 , 3.3 and 3.7** of this act become effective upon passage and approval.

2. Sections 1, 2 and 4 of this act become effective on October 1, 2023.

Assemblywoman Brittney Miller moved the adoption of the amendment.

Remarks by Assemblywoman Brittney Miller.

Amendment adopted.

Bill ordered reprinted, re-engrossed and to third reading.

Senate Bill No. 39.

Bill read second time and ordered to third reading.

Senate Bill No. 43.

Bill read second time and ordered to third reading.

Senate Bill No. 59.

Bill read second time and ordered to third reading.

Senate Bill No. 85.

Bill read second time and ordered to third reading.

Senate Bill No. 105.

Bill read second time and ordered to third reading.

Senate Bill No. 110.

Bill read second time.

The following amendment was proposed by the Committee on Growth and Infrastructure:

Amendment No. 598.

AN ACT relating to public safety; requiring vehicles operating on certain highways in this State with one lane for traveling in each direction to display daytime running lamps or lighted lamps and illuminating devices under certain circumstances; revising certain provisions governing the requirements for lamps and other equipment on vehicles and implements of husbandry during certain times and conditions; and providing other matters properly relating thereto.

Legislative Counsel’s Digest:

Existing law requires every vehicle on a highway of this State, with certain exceptions for parked vehicles, to display lighted lamps and illuminating devices as respectively required for different classes of vehicles during defined conditions: (1) at any time from one-half hour after sunset to one-half hour before sunrise; (2) at any other time when persons and vehicles on the highway are not clearly discernible at a distance of 1,000 feet ahead; and (3) when directed by an official traffic control device. Existing law also prescribes certain requirements for lamps and other equipment on vehicles and implements of husbandry during those times or conditions. (NRS 484D.100, 484D.105, 484D.165, 484D.170, 484D.175, 484D.215, 484D.220, 484D.460) **Section 1** of this bill requires that when one of those times or conditions does not apply, every vehicle operating upon a highway of this State that has one lane for traveling in each direction, except for a street, must display the daytime running lamps, as defined by federal regulation, or lighted lamps and illuminating devices while operating on such a highway. (49 C.F.R. § 571.108; NRS 484D.100) **Sections 2-8** of this bill make conforming changes to clarify the times and conditions during which the requirements for certain lamps and other equipment on vehicles apply.

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NEVADA, REPRESENTED IN
SENATE AND ASSEMBLY, DO ENACT AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. NRS 484D.100 is hereby amended to read as follows:

484D.100 1. Every vehicle upon a highway of this State, subject to exceptions with respect to parked vehicles as stated in chapters 484A to 484E, inclusive, of NRS, must display lighted lamps and illuminating devices as respectively required in this chapter for different classes of vehicles:

- (a) At any time from one-half hour after sunset to one-half hour before sunrise;
- (b) At any other time when, because of insufficient light or unfavorable atmospheric conditions, persons and vehicles on the highway are not clearly discernible at a distance of 1,000 feet ahead; and
- (c) When directed by an official traffic control device.

2. *During a time or condition to which subsection 1 is not applicable, every vehicle upon a highway of this State that has one lane for traveling in each direction, except for a street, must display daytime running lamps or lighted lamps and illuminating devices while operating on such a highway.*

3. Every vehicle upon a highway must be equipped with stop lights, turn signals and other signaling devices to be lighted in the manner prescribed for the use of such devices.

4. *As used in this section, “daytime running lamps” has the meaning ascribed to it in 49 C.F.R. § 571.108.*

Sec. 2. NRS 484D.105 is hereby amended to read as follows:

484D.105 1. Whenever there is a requirement as to distance from which lighted lamps and illuminating devices shall be visible, such requirements shall apply during the times and conditions specified in *subsection 1 of* NRS 484D.100 and measured as though the vehicle were unloaded and upon a straight, level, unlighted highway under normal atmospheric conditions, unless a different time or condition is specified.

2. Whenever there is a requirement as to the mounted height of such lamps or devices, such height shall be measured from the center of the lamp or device to the level ground upon which the vehicle stands when the vehicle is unloaded.

Sec. 3. NRS 484D.165 is hereby amended to read as follows:

484D.165 1. Every vehicle shall be equipped with one or more lamps which, when lighted, shall display a white or amber light visible from a distance of 500 feet to the front of the vehicle, and one or more lamps which, when lighted, shall display a red light visible from a distance of 500 feet to the rear of the vehicle. The location of such lamps shall be such that at least one such lamp is installed as near as practicable to the side of the vehicle which is closest to passing traffic.

2. Whenever a vehicle is parked upon the traveled portion of a highway during the times ~~mentioned~~ *and conditions specified in subsection 1 of* NRS 484D.100 and there is sufficient light to reveal any person or object within a distance of 1,000 feet upon such highway, no lights need be displayed upon such parked vehicle.

3. Whenever a vehicle is parked or stopped upon the traveled portion of a highway or shoulder adjacent thereto, whether attended or unattended during the times ~~mentioned~~ *and conditions specified in subsection 1 of* NRS 484D.100, and there is insufficient light to reveal any person or object within a distance of 1,000 feet upon such highway or roadway, such vehicle shall display lighted lamps meeting the requirements of subsection 1.

4. Any lighted headlamps upon a parked vehicle shall be depressed or dimmed.

Sec. 4. NRS 484D.170 is hereby amended to read as follows:

484D.170 1. Every implement of husbandry manufactured after January 1, 1970, shall be equipped with vehicular hazard-warning lamps of a type described in NRS 484D.205, visible from a distance of not less than 1,000 feet to the front and rear in normal sunlight, which shall be displayed whenever any such vehicle is operated upon a highway.

2. Every implement of husbandry manufactured after January 1, 1970, shall at all times, and every other such vehicle shall, during the times

~~mentioned~~ *and conditions specified in subsection 1 of* NRS 484D.100, be equipped with lamps and reflectors as follows:

(a) At least two headlamps meeting the requirements of NRS 484D.210.

(b) At least one red lamp visible when lighted from a distance of not less than 1,000 feet to the rear, mounted as far to the left of the center of the vehicle as practicable.

(c) At least two red reflectors visible from all distances within 600 feet to 100 feet to the rear when directly in front of lawful lower beams of headlamps.

3. Every combination of farm tractor and towed implement of husbandry shall at all times ~~mentioned~~ *and conditions specified in subsection 1 of* NRS 484D.100 be equipped with lamps and reflectors as follows:

(a) The farm tractor shall be equipped as required in subsections 1 and 2.

(b) If the towed unit extends more than 4 feet to the rear of the tractor or obscures any lamp on the tractor, such unit shall be equipped on the rear with at least two red reflectors visible from all distances within 600 feet to 100 feet to the rear when directly in front of lawful lower beams of headlamps.

(c) If the towed unit extends more than 4 feet to the left of the centerline of the tractor, such unit shall be equipped on the front with an amber reflector visible from all distances within 600 feet to 100 feet to the front when directly in front of lawful beams of headlamps. Such reflector shall be so positioned as to indicate, as nearly as practicable, the extreme left projection of the towed unit.

4. The two red reflectors required by subsection 3 shall be so positioned as to show from the rear, as nearly as practicable, the extreme width of the vehicle or combination carrying them.

Sec. 5. NRS 484D.175 is hereby amended to read as follows:

484D.175 All vehicles including animal-drawn vehicles not otherwise specifically required to be equipped with lamps, shall at all times *and conditions* specified in *subsection 1 of* NRS 484D.100 be equipped with at least one lamp displaying a white light visible from a distance of not less than 500 feet to the front of the vehicle and two lamps displaying a red light visible from a distance of not less than 500 feet to the rear of the vehicle or one lamp displaying a red light visible from a distance of not less than 500 feet to the rear and two red reflectors visible from all distances of 600 to 100 feet to the rear when illuminated by the lawful lower beams of headlamps.

Sec. 6. NRS 484D.215 is hereby amended to read as follows:

484D.215 Whenever a motor vehicle is being operated on the traveled portion of the highway, or shoulder adjacent thereto, during the times *and conditions* specified in *subsection 1 of* NRS 484D.100, the driver shall use a distribution of light, or composite beam, directed high enough and of sufficient intensity to reveal persons and vehicles at a safe distance in advance of the vehicle, subject to the following requirements and limitations:

1. Whenever a driver of a vehicle approaches an oncoming vehicle within 500 feet, the driver shall use a distribution of light, or composite beam, so aimed that the glaring rays are not projected into the eyes of the oncoming

driver. The lowermost distribution of light, or composite beam, specified in subsection 2 of NRS 484D.210 shall be deemed to avoid glare at all times, regardless of road contour and loading.

2. Whenever the driver of a vehicle follows another vehicle within 300 feet to the rear, the driver shall use a distribution of light permissible under this chapter other than the uppermost distribution of light specified in subsection 1 of NRS 484D.210.

Sec. 7. NRS 484D.220 is hereby amended to read as follows:

484D.220 1. At all times *and conditions* specified in *subsection 1 of* NRS 484D.100, a lighted headlamp or headlamps meeting the requirements of NRS 484D.110 shall be displayed on a motor vehicle except when the vehicle is parked.

2. Whenever a motor vehicle equipped with headlamps is also equipped with any auxiliary lamps, spot lamp or any other lamp on the front projecting a beam of intensity greater than 300 candle power, not more than a total of four of any such lamps may be lighted at one time when upon a highway.

3. A motor vehicle may be equipped with headlamps that are high-intensity discharge lamps if such headlamps have a correlated color temperature of not less than 5,000 kelvins and not more than 6,000 kelvins.

4. The provisions of subsection 3 do not apply to the extent preempted by federal law.

5. As used in this section, “high-intensity discharge lamp” has the meaning ascribed to it in 10 C.F.R. § 431.282.

Sec. 8. NRS 484D.460 is hereby amended to read as follows:

484D.460 1. Every bus, truck and truck-tractor and every combination of vehicles 80 inches or more in overall width, except implements of husbandry, shall be equipped with at least three pot torches, three red electric lanterns or three red emergency reflectors.

2. Except as otherwise provided in subsections 3, 4 and 5, when any such vehicle is disabled on any portion of the traveled portion of a highway during any time *or condition* specified in *subsection 1 of* NRS 484D.100, such torches, lanterns or reflectors shall be placed as soon as possible as follows:

(a) One at the traffic side of the vehicle, not more than 10 feet to the front or rear thereof;

(b) One at a distance of approximately 100 feet to the rear of the disabled vehicle in the center of the traffic lane occupied by such vehicle; and

(c) One at a distance of approximately 100 feet to the front of the vehicle in the center of the traffic lane occupied by such vehicle.

3. If the vehicle is disabled within 500 feet of a curve, crest of a hill or other obstruction to view, the torch, lantern or reflector to be placed in that direction shall be placed so as to afford ample warning to other users of the highway, but not less than 100 feet or more than 500 feet from the vehicle.

4. When any such vehicle is disabled on any portion of the traveled portion of a one-way highway with two or more traffic lanes during any time *or condition* specified in *subsection 1 of* NRS 484D.100, such torches, lanterns

or reflectors shall be placed as soon as possible as provided in subsection 2, except that the torch, lantern or reflector to be placed at the front of the vehicle shall be placed 200 feet to the rear of the vehicle.

5. When any such vehicle is disabled or parked off the traveled portion of a highway, but within 10 feet of such portion, during any time *or condition* specified in *subsection 1 of* NRS 484D.100, such torches, lanterns or reflectors shall be placed as soon as possible as follows:

(a) One at the traffic side of the vehicle not more than 10 feet to the rear of the vehicle;

(b) One at a distance of approximately 100 feet to the rear of the vehicle; and

(c) One at a distance of approximately 200 feet to the rear of the vehicle.

6. When any such vehicle is equipped with front turn signals which flash simultaneously and rear turn signals which flash simultaneously or with fusees, such turn signals shall be immediately operated or such fusees shall be placed as provided in this section for the placing of torches, lanterns or reflectors until such torches, lanterns or reflectors have been placed.

Sec. 9. This act becomes effective on July 1, 2028.

Assemblyman Watts moved the adoption of the amendment.

Remarks by Assemblyman Watts.

Amendment adopted.

Bill ordered reprinted, engrossed and to third reading.

Senate Bill No. 129.

Bill read second time and ordered to third reading.

Senate Bill No. 133.

Bill read second time and ordered to third reading.

Senate Bill No. 147.

Bill read second time and ordered to third reading.

Senate Bill No. 148.

Bill read second time and ordered to third reading.

Senate Bill No. 153.

Bill read second time and ordered to third reading.

Senate Bill No. 164.

Bill read second time and ordered to third reading.

Senate Bill No. 181.

Bill read second time and ordered to third reading.

Senate Bill No. 182.

Bill read second time and ordered to third reading.

Senate Bill No. 194.

Bill read second time and ordered to third reading.

Senate Bill No. 223.

Bill read second time and ordered to third reading.

Senate Bill No. 243.

Bill read second time and ordered to third reading.

Senate Bill No. 251.

Bill read second time and ordered to third reading.

Senate Bill No. 257.

Bill read second time and ordered to third reading.

Senate Bill No. 258.

Bill read second time and ordered to third reading.

Senate Bill No. 298.

Bill read second time and ordered to third reading.

Senate Bill No. 299.

Bill read second time and ordered to third reading.

Senate Bill No. 302.

Bill read second time and ordered to third reading.

Senate Bill No. 316.

Bill read second time and ordered to third reading.

Senate Bill No. 338.

Bill read second time and ordered to third reading.

Senate Bill No. 340.

Bill read second time and ordered to third reading.

Senate Bill No. 351.

Bill read second time and ordered to third reading.

Senate Bill No. 354.

Bill read second time and ordered to third reading.

Senate Bill No. 381.

Bill read second time and ordered to third reading.

Senate Bill No. 382.

Bill read second time and ordered to third reading.

Senate Bill No. 384.

Bill read second time.

The following amendment was proposed by the Committee on Growth and Infrastructure:

Amendment No. 593.

AN ACT relating to broadband; establishing certain requirements for a state agency that awards grants of federal money for the development of broadband services and infrastructure; and providing other matters properly relating thereto.

Legislative Counsel’s Digest:

Existing law establishes the Office of Science, Innovation and Technology in the Office of the Governor and requires: (1) the Director of the Office to establish and administer a program of infrastructure grants for the development or improvement of broadband services for persons with low income and persons in rural areas of this State; and (2) the Office to establish and administer a program to encourage the deployment of broadband infrastructure in underserved communities in this State. (NRS 223.600, 223.610, 223.670) **Section 2** of this bill sets forth a legislative declaration regarding the importance of using a well-trained workforce and providing jobs to residents of this State in expending federal money to increase the development of broadband services and infrastructure in this State.

Section 3 of this bill requires each state agency that awards grants of federal money for the development of broadband services and infrastructure to: (1) evaluate and assign a score to each grant application received by the state agency based on the factors and relative weights assigned to each factor that the state agency specified in the request for grant applications; and (2) assign a relative weight of 30 percent to a grant application if the applicant submits a signed certification with his or her application. **Section 3** provides that the applicant must certify that if the applicant or a provider of broadband services will perform some or all of the work or will subcontract some or all of the work to a licensed contractor, the applicant, provider or contractor: (1) meets certain safety and training requirements and provides job opportunities with high-quality wages for residents of this State and members of underrepresented communities; or (2) is a signatory to a collective bargaining agreement that covers the direct employees of the applicant who will perform any work financed in whole or in part by the grant money.

Section 3 also provides that if an applicant ~~[provides a certification that the applicant] or provider [meets certain safety and training requirements and provides job opportunities with high quality wages for residents of this State and members of underrepresented communities,]~~ **is a signatory to a collective bargaining agreement,** certain provisions of law requiring the payment of prevailing wages on public works do not apply. **Section 3.5** of this bill makes a conforming change to provide an exception to the requirements to pay prevailing wages on public works.

Section 3 further requires each state agency to include as a condition of any grant award that: (1) the certification provided by the applicant is binding upon the applicant that is awarded the grant money; and (2) if a licensed contractor performs any work, certain provisions of law governing public works apply to the work performed by the subcontractor. Lastly, **section 3** authorizes the

Director of the Office to adopt regulations to carry out the provisions of **section 3**.

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NEVADA, REPRESENTED IN
SENATE AND ASSEMBLY, DO ENACT AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Chapter 232 of NRS is hereby amended by adding thereto the provisions set forth as sections 2 and 3 of this act.

Sec. 2. *The Legislature finds and declares that:*

1. The State of Nevada is poised to see a once in a generation wave of federal money resulting from the passage of the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act, Public Law 117-58, and the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021, Public Law 117-2, which will help to close the digital divide and increase the development of broadband services and infrastructure across the State;

2. The State of Nevada needs to ensure that this historic investment creates long-lasting broadband infrastructure that is built by a well-trained workforce;

3. Work performed by an unqualified contractor with a poorly trained workforce endangers the public and is not in the best interest of the citizens of this State; and

4. Proper stewardship of public money will require that the State of Nevada implement appropriate measures to ensure that any grants of federal money awarded by this State for the development of broadband services and infrastructure prioritize issuing grants to applicants that will ensure the work is performed safely and by a well-trained workforce and that the applicant provides quality jobs to Nevada workers.

Sec. 3. 1. *In awarding any grant of federal money for the development of broadband services and infrastructure in accordance with federal law, each state agency shall:*

(a) Evaluate and assign a score to each application received by the state agency based on the factors and relative weights assigned to each factor that the state agency specified in the request for grant applications; and

(b) When ranking the proposals, assign a relative weight of 30 percent to an application if the applicant submits a signed certification attesting that the applicant meets the requirements of paragraph (a) or (b) of subsection 2.

2. An applicant for a grant of federal money for the development of broadband services and infrastructure shall submit to a state agency with the application for the grant a signed statement certifying that:

(a) If the applicant:

(1) Will perform some or all of the work that is financed in whole or in part with the grant money or if such work will be performed by a provider of broadband services, the applicant or provider, as applicable, meets the requirements set forth in paragraph (b) or (c); and

(2) Will subcontract some or all of the work that is financed in whole or in part with the grant money, the subcontractor meets the requirements set forth in paragraph (b) or (c);

(b) The applicant, provider of broadband services or contractor, as applicable:

(1) Has a robust training program with training requirements that are tied to titles, uniform wage scales and skill codes recognized in the industry;

(2) Requires safety training, including, without limitation, any safety training requirements of the Occupational Safety and Health Administration of the United States Department of Labor, and operates a safety program that requires drug testing;

(3) Requires work performed by the applicant, provider or contractor, as applicable, that is financed in whole or in part with the grant money will be performed by employees who are directly employed by the applicant, provider or contractor, as applicable, and that such workers will receive high-quality wages and benefits;

(4) Has programs to promote the training and hiring of workers from underrepresented communities; and

(5) Primarily employs a qualified local work force consisting of residents of this State or conducts a program to promote the hiring of residents of this State; ~~and~~

~~(6) Has a documented record of complying with all applicable labor and employment laws in the 5-year period immediately preceding the date the grant application is filed or has a documented record of mitigating any violations of the applicable labor and employment laws and has taken measures to ensure future compliance with such laws; } or~~

(c) The applicant, provider of broadband services or contractor licensed pursuant to chapter 624 of NRS that will perform some or all of the work is a signatory to a collective bargaining agreement that covers all non-supervisory employees directly employed by the applicant, provider or contractor, as applicable, who will perform any work financed in whole or in part with the grant money.

3. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 5, the provisions of NRS 338.020 to 338.090, inclusive, do not apply to work performed by an applicant or provider of broadband services that is a public work if the applicant or provider, as applicable, is a signatory to a collective bargaining agreement.

4. Any certification submitted by an applicant for a grant pursuant to subsection 2 must be made available on the Internet website of the state agency which awarded the grant.

5. In addition to the requirements of subsections 1 and 2 and except as otherwise provided in federal law, each state agency shall require as a condition of any grant of federal money for the development of broadband services and infrastructure in accordance with federal law that is awarded by the state agency that:

(a) Any certification provided by the applicant pursuant to subsection 2 is binding upon the applicant who is awarded the grant money; and

(b) If a contractor licensed pursuant to chapter 624 of NRS performs any work financed in whole or in part with the grant money, the provisions of NRS 338.020 to 338.090, inclusive, shall apply.

6. If any federal statute or regulation precludes the granting of federal assistance or reduces the amount of that assistance for a particular grant because of the provisions of this section, the provisions of this section do not apply insofar as their application would preclude or reduce federal assistance for that work.

7. The Director of the Office of Science, Innovation and Technology established pursuant to NRS 223.600 may adopt regulations to carry out the provisions of this section.

8. As used in this section, “state agency” means every public agency, bureau, board, commission, department, division, officer or employee of the Executive Department of the State Government.

Sec. 3.5. NRS 338.080 is hereby amended to read as follows:

338.080 Except as otherwise provided in NRS 408.55086, none of the provisions of NRS 338.020 to 338.090, inclusive, apply to:

1. Any work, construction, alteration, repair or other employment performed, undertaken or carried out, by or for any railroad company or any person operating the same, whether such work, construction, alteration or repair is incident to or in conjunction with a contract to which a public body is a party, or otherwise.

2. Apprentices recorded under the provisions of chapter 610 of NRS.

3. Any contract for a public work whose estimated cost is less than \$100,000. A unit of the project must not be separated from the total project, even if that unit is to be completed at a later time, in order to lower the estimated cost of the project below \$100,000.

4. Any work performed for the development of broadband services and infrastructure using grant money awarded pursuant to section 3 of this act by the recipient of the grant money or a provider of broadband services if the recipient or provider, as applicable, is a signatory to a collective bargaining agreement, unless the work is performed by a contractor who is licensed pursuant to chapter 624 of NRS.

Sec. 4. 1. This section becomes effective upon passage and approval.

2. Sections 1 to 3.5, inclusive, of this act become effective:

(a) Upon passage and approval for the purpose of adopting any regulations and performing any other preparatory administrative tasks that are necessary to carry out the provisions of this act; and

(b) On January 1, 2024, for all other purposes.

Assemblyman Watts moved the adoption of the amendment.

Remarks by Assemblyman Watts.

Amendment adopted.

Bill ordered reprinted, re-engrossed and to third reading.

Senate Bill No. 388.

Bill read second time and ordered to third reading.

Senate Bill No. 391.

Bill read second time.

The following amendment was proposed by Assemblyman Koenig:

Amendment No. 705.

AN ACT relating to governmental entities; revising provisions prohibiting certain counties, cities and unincorporated towns from sounding sirens, bells or alarms for certain purposes; establishing civil penalties for violations of such prohibitions; authorizing the Attorney General to bring a civil action to recover such penalties; and providing other matters properly relating thereto.

Legislative Counsel's Digest:

Existing law prohibits a county, city or town in this State from sounding a siren, bell or alarm that was previously sounded on certain days or times in association with an ordinance enacted by the county, city or town which required persons of a particular race, ethnicity, ancestry, national origin or color to leave the county or a city, town or township within the county by a certain time. (NRS 244.159, 268.0199, 269.234)

This bill revises these provisions by prohibiting a county, a city and an unincorporated town **that sounds or sounded such a siren, bell or alarm in association with such an ordinance** from sounding a siren, bell or alarm for a purpose other than: (1) alerting persons to an emergency; (2) testing the siren, bell or alarm at reasonable time intervals of not more than once every 6 months; or (3) celebrating or recognizing a legal holiday on the day of the legal holiday or the day on which the legal holiday is recognized by existing law. This bill authorizes the Attorney General to bring a civil action to collect a monetary penalty from a county, city or unincorporated town for each violation. This bill prohibits a county, city or unincorporated town from taking adverse employment action against the employee for reporting such a violation to the Attorney General.

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NEVADA, REPRESENTED IN
SENATE AND ASSEMBLY, DO ENACT AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. NRS 244.159 is hereby amended to read as follows:

244.159 **1.** A county in this State may not sound a siren, bell or alarm ~~at a time during which the~~ **if a siren, bell or alarm is currently or was previously sounded on specific days or times in association with an ordinance enacted by the county which required persons of a particular race, ethnicity, ancestry, national origin or color to leave the county or a city, town or township within the county by a specific time** ~~for a purpose other than:~~

(a) Alerting persons to an emergency;

(b) Testing the siren, bell or alarm at reasonably scheduled intervals of not more than once every 6 months; or

(c) Celebrating or recognizing a day declared to be a legal holiday pursuant to NRS 236.015 on the day of the legal holiday or the day on which the legal holiday is recognized.

2. Any county that sounds a siren, bell or alarm in violation of subsection 1 is subject to a penalty of not more than \$50,000 for each violation. The Attorney General may recover the penalty in a civil action brought in the name of the State of Nevada in any court of competent jurisdiction. Such an action must be commenced within 1 year after the violation.

3. A county shall not take adverse employment action against an employee who reports a violation of this section to the Office of the Attorney General.

Sec. 2. NRS 268.0199 is hereby amended to read as follows:

268.0199 *I.* A city in this State may not sound a siren, bell or alarm ~~at a time during which the~~ if a siren, bell or alarm is currently or was previously sounded on specific days or times in association with an ordinance enacted by the city which required persons of a particular race, ethnicity, ancestry, national origin or color to leave the city by a specific time ~~for a purpose other than:~~

(a) Alerting persons to an emergency;

(b) Testing the siren, bell or alarm at reasonably scheduled intervals of not more than once every 6 months; or

(c) Celebrating or recognizing a day declared to be a legal holiday pursuant to NRS 236.015 on the day of the legal holiday or the day on which the legal holiday is recognized.

2. Any city that sounds a siren, bell or alarm in violation of subsection 1 is subject to a penalty of not more than \$50,000 for each violation. The Attorney General may recover the penalty in a civil action brought in the name of the State of Nevada in any court of competent jurisdiction. Such an action must be commenced within 1 year after the violation.

3. A city shall not take adverse employment action against an employee who reports a violation of this section to the Office of the Attorney General.

Sec. 3. NRS 269.234 is hereby amended to read as follows:

269.234 *I.* An unincorporated town in this State may not sound a siren, bell or alarm ~~at a time during which the~~ if a siren, bell or alarm is currently or was previously sounded on specific days or times in association with an ordinance enacted by the town which required persons of a particular race, ethnicity, ancestry, national origin or color to leave the town by a specific time ~~for a purpose other than:~~

(a) Alerting persons to an emergency;

(b) Testing the siren, bell or alarm at reasonably scheduled intervals of not more than once every 6 months; or

(c) Celebrating or recognizing a day declared to be a legal holiday pursuant to NRS 236.015 on the day of the legal holiday or the day on which the legal holiday is recognized.

2. Any unincorporated town that sounds a siren, bell or alarm in violation of subsection 1 is subject to a penalty of not more than \$50,000 for each violation. The Attorney General may recover the penalty in a civil action brought in the name of the State of Nevada in any court of competent jurisdiction. Such an action must be commenced within 1 year after the violation.

3. An unincorporated town shall not take adverse employment action against an employee who reports a violation of this section to law enforcement.

Sec. 4. This act becomes effective upon passage and approval.

Assemblywoman Torres moved the adoption of the amendment.

Remarks by Assemblywoman Torres.

Amendment adopted.

Bill ordered reprinted, re-engrossed and to third reading.

Senate Bill No. 393.

Bill read second time and ordered to third reading.

Senate Bill No. 397.

Bill read second time and ordered to third reading.

Senate Bill No. 401.

Bill read second time and ordered to third reading.

Senate Bill No. 404.

Bill read second time and ordered to third reading.

Senate Bill No. 410.

Bill read second time and ordered to third reading.

Senate Bill No. 415.

Bill read second time and ordered to third reading.

Senate Bill No. 424.

Bill read second time and ordered to third reading.

Senate Bill No. 429.

Bill read second time and ordered to third reading.

Senate Bill No. 436.

Bill read second time and ordered to third reading.

Senate Bill No. 442.

Bill read second time and ordered to third reading.

MOTIONS, RESOLUTIONS AND NOTICES

Assemblywoman Monroe-Moreno moved that Senate Bill No. 388 be taken from its place on the General File and rereferred to the Committee on Ways and Means.

Motion carried.

GENERAL FILE AND THIRD READING

Assembly Bill No. 465.

Bill read third time.

The following amendment was proposed by Assemblyman Gray:

Amendment No. 621.

~~ASSEMBLYMAN~~ ASSEMBLYMEN YEAGER ; AND GRAY

AN ACT relating to the state militia; revising the age requirements for enlisted personnel and commissioned officers; revising provisions governing the Adjutant General of the Office of the Military; and providing other matters properly relating thereto.

Legislative Counsel's Digest:

Existing law creates the position of the Adjutant General as an appointed member of the military staff of the Governor and grants the Adjutant General the authority to appoint two Assistant Adjutants General that are selected from the commissioned officers of the Armed Forces of the United States. (NRS 412.042, 412.044) **Section 2** of this bill requires that the two Assistant Adjutants General are instead selected from the commissioned officers of the Nevada National Guard.

Existing law further provides that to be eligible for appointment to the office of Adjutant General or Assistant Adjutant General, a person must be an officer of the Armed Forces of the United States and be federally recognized in the grade of colonel or higher. (NRS 412.044, 412.054) **Sections 3 and 4** of this bill require instead that to be eligible for appointment to the office of Adjutant General or Assistant Adjutant General, a person must be an officer of the Nevada National Guard, federally recognized in the grade of colonel or higher and must have completed at least 4 years of service in the Nevada National Guard as a federally recognized officer.

Existing law establishes the Nevada National Guard as an organized body of enlisted personnel between the ages of 17 and 64 years and commissioned officers between the ages of 18 and 64 years. (NRS 412.026) **Section 1** of this bill instead provides that enlisted personnel and commissioned officers serve in accordance with the age requirements set forth under federal law and any applicable regulations.

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NEVADA, REPRESENTED IN
SENATE AND ASSEMBLY, DO ENACT AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. NRS 412.026 is hereby amended to read as follows:

412.026 1. The militia of the State is composed of the Nevada National Guard and, when called into active service by the Governor, reservists to the Nevada National Guard and any volunteer military organizations licensed by the Governor.

2. The Nevada National Guard is an organized body of enlisted personnel ~~[between the ages of 17 and 64 years]~~ and commissioned officers ~~[between the ages of 18 and 64 years.]~~ ***who serve in accordance with the age requirements set forth under federal law and any applicable regulations adopted pursuant thereto***, divided into the Nevada Army National Guard and the Nevada Air National Guard.

3. If a volunteer military organization is formed and becomes licensed by the Governor, it shall consist of an organized body of able-bodied residents of the State between the ages of 17 and 64 years who are not serving in any force of the Nevada National Guard and who are or who have declared their intention to become citizens of the United States.

Sec. 2. NRS 412.042 is hereby amended to read as follows:

412.042 1. The military staff of the Governor consists of the Adjutant General and not more than two Assistant Adjutants General selected from the commissioned officers of the ~~[Armed Forces of the United States.]~~ ***Nevada National Guard***.

2. The military staff of the Governor shall perform such ceremonial functions and duties as the Governor may prescribe.

Sec. 3. NRS 412.044 is hereby amended to read as follows:

412.044 1. The Governor shall appoint an Adjutant General who shall serve at the pleasure of the Governor or until relieved by reason of resignation, withdrawal of federal recognition or for cause to be determined by a court-martial. The service of the Adjutant General shall continue while such Adjutant General is serving in a federal active duty status under an order or call by the President of the United States.

2. To be eligible for appointment to the office of Adjutant General, a person must be an officer of the ~~[Armed Forces of the United States.]~~ ***Nevada National Guard*** and federally recognized in the grade of colonel or higher ~~[.]~~ ***and must have completed at least 4 years of service in the Nevada National Guard as a federally recognized officer***.

3. The Adjutant General may be appointed in the grade of colonel or higher, but not exceeding that of major general. If appointed in a lower grade, the Adjutant General may be promoted by the Governor to any grade not exceeding that of major general.

Sec. 4. NRS 412.054 is hereby amended to read as follows:

412.054 1. The Adjutant General may appoint two Assistant Adjutants General, one each from the Nevada Army National Guard and the Nevada Air National Guard, who may serve as Chief of Staff for Army and Chief of Staff for Air, respectively, at the pleasure of the Adjutant General or until relieved by reason of resignation, withdrawal of federal recognition or for cause to be determined by a court-martial.

2. To be eligible for appointment to the office of Assistant Adjutant General, a person must be an officer of the ~~[Armed Forces of the United States]~~ *Nevada National Guard* and be federally recognized in the grade of colonel or higher ~~[]~~ *and must have completed at least 4 years of service in the Nevada National Guard as a federally recognized officer.*

3. An Assistant Adjutant General may be appointed in the grade of colonel or higher, but not exceeding that of brigadier general. An Assistant Adjutant General may be promoted by the Governor to any grade not exceeding that of brigadier general.

4. The Assistant Adjutants General shall perform such duties as may be assigned by the Adjutant General.

5. Whoever serves as Chief of Staff for Army is in the unclassified service of the State and, except as otherwise provided in NRS 284.143, shall not hold any other city, county, state or federal office of profit.

6. In the event of the absence or inability of the Adjutant General to perform his or her duties, the Adjutant General shall designate by Office regulations:

(a) One of the Assistant Adjutants General to perform the duties of his or her office as Acting Adjutant General.

(b) If neither Assistant Adjutant General is available, any national guard officer to be the Acting Adjutant General.

↪ The designated Assistant Adjutant General or designated officer may continue to receive his or her authorized salary while so serving as Acting Adjutant General, and shall so serve until the Adjutant General is again able to perform the duties of the office, or if the office is vacant, until an Adjutant General is regularly appointed and qualified.

Sec. 5. This act becomes effective on July 1, 2023.

Assemblyman Gray moved the adoption of the amendment.

Remarks by Assemblyman Gray.

Amendment adopted.

Bill ordered reprinted, engrossed and to third reading.

Assembly Bill No. 514.

Bill read third time.

The following amendment was proposed by Assemblyman O'Neill:

Amendment No. 631.

AN ACT relating to public buildings; naming the building that contains the headquarters for the Nevada Department of Transportation in Carson City, Nevada, as the Garth F. Dull Building; and providing other matters properly relating thereto.

Legislative Counsel's Digest:

This bill names the building that contains the headquarters of the Nevada Department of Transportation in Carson City, Nevada, as the Garth F. Dull Building, in recognition of the contributions that Garth F. Dull made to the

people of the State of Nevada by maintaining and improving transportation in this State through his work for the Nevada Department of Transportation.

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NEVADA, REPRESENTED IN
SENATE AND ASSEMBLY, DO ENACT AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The Legislature hereby finds and declares that:

1. Garth **F.** Dull:

(a) Worked for the Nevada Department of Transportation to improve the life of all Nevadans by maintaining and improving transportation in this State;

(b) Was born in Douglas, Wyoming, on November 30, 1939;

(c) Began working for the Nevada Department of Transportation in 1960 until he was drafted into the United States Army;

(d) Served 3 years in the United States Army, before he returned to work for the Nevada Department of Transportation;

(e) Was the first graduate of the Engineer in Training Program of the Nevada Department of Transportation in 1975;

(f) Was promoted to the Chief of Road Design and also served as the Deputy Director of the Nevada Department of Transportation before he was promoted to Director; and

(g) Retired in 1995 after working over 30 years for the Nevada Department of Transportation.

2. Because the members of the Nevada Legislature wish to pay special tribute to Garth **F.** Dull for his many years of service to the Nevada Department of Transportation, the building containing the headquarters of the Nevada Department of Transportation in Carson City is hereby named the Garth **F.** Dull Building.

3. Because public buildings may be known by an individual moniker and other atypical factors and special conditions, a general law cannot be made applicable to the provisions of this section.

Sec. 2. Notwithstanding the provisions of NRS 218D.430 and 218D.435, a committee may vote on this act before the expiration of the period prescribed for the return of a fiscal note in NRS 218D.475. This section applies retroactively from and after May 15, 2023.

Sec. 3. 1. This section and section 2 of this act become effective upon passage and approval.

2. Section 1 of this act becomes effective:

(a) Upon passage and approval for the purpose of performing any preparatory administrative tasks that are necessary to carry out the provisions of this act; and

(b) On July 1, 2023, for all other purposes.

Assemblyman O'Neill moved the adoption of the amendment.

Remarks by Assemblyman O'Neill.

Amendment adopted.

Bill ordered reprinted, engrossed and to third reading.

MOTIONS, RESOLUTIONS AND NOTICES

Assemblywoman Jauregui moved to dispense with the reprinting of Assembly Bills Nos. 465 and 514.

Motion carried.

Assemblywoman Jauregui moved that Assembly Bills Nos. 465 and 514, and Senate Bill No. 437 be taken from their positions on the General File and placed at the top of the General File.

Motion carried.

Assemblywoman Jauregui moved that Senate Bills Nos. 91, 113, 115, and 177 be taken from their positions on the General File and placed at the bottom of the General File

Motion carried.

Mr. Speaker announced if there were no objections, the Assembly would recess subject to the call of the Chair.

Assembly in recess at 12:38 p.m.

ASSEMBLY IN SESSION

At 12:42 p.m.

Mr. Speaker presiding.

Quorum present.

GENERAL FILE AND THIRD READING

Assembly Bill No. 465.

Bill read third time.

Remarks by Assemblywoman Jauregui.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN JAUREGUI:

Assembly Bill 465 revises provisions governing the state militia.

Roll call on Assembly Bill No. 465:

YEAS—41.

NAYS—None.

EXCUSED—González.

Assembly Bill No. 465 having received a constitutional majority, Mr. Speaker declared it passed, as amended.

Bill ordered transmitted to the Senate.

Assembly Bill No. 514.

Bill read third time.

Remarks by Assemblyman O'Neill.

ASSEMBLYMAN O'NEILL:

Assembly Bill 514 names the building that contains the headquarters of Nevada's Department of Transportation—or as we call it, NDOT—in Carson City as the Garth F. Dull Building. Garth Dull worked more than 30 years for NDOT to improve the life of all Nevadans by maintaining

and improving transportation in Nevada, ultimately serving as Director before his retirement in 1995 and his recent death.

Roll call on Assembly Bill No. 514:

YEAS—41.

NAYS—None.

EXCUSED—González.

Assembly Bill No. 514 having received a constitutional majority, Mr. Speaker declared it passed, as amended.

Bill ordered transmitted to the Senate.

Senate Bill No. 437.

Bill read third time.

Remarks by Assemblywoman Duran.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN DURAN:

Senate Bill 437 extends the authority of the Nevada State Board of Accountancy to grant certain practice privileges to a certified public accounting firm organized as a corporation, limited-liability company, partnership, or sole proprietorship that holds a valid registration in good standing from another state. These entities do not have to obtain a certificate or permit from or register with the Board, but they must consent to certain conditions and maintain an office in Nevada unless organized as a sole proprietorship. The bill also exempts from the registration requirement certain entities whose sole business is preparing tax returns and related schedules.

In addition, the bill revises certain provisions governing the requirements for a person to qualify for a certificate of certified public accountant and authorizes, rather than requires, the Board to charge a fee for an associated examination.

This bill is effective on July 1, 2023.

Roll call on Senate Bill No. 437:

YEAS—41.

NAYS—None.

EXCUSED—González.

Senate Bill No. 437 having received a constitutional majority, Mr. Speaker declared it passed.

Bill ordered transmitted to the Senate.

Senate Bill No. 4.

Bill read third time.

Remarks by Assemblyman Hibbetts.

ASSEMBLYMAN HIBBETTS:

Senate Bill 4 authorizes the Department of Health and Human Services to provide grants or enter into contracts or intergovernmental agreements financed by the Fund for a Healthy Nevada to pay for or subsidize the cost of prescription drugs, pharmaceutical services, and certain other benefits for Nevada residents. The bill also authorizes the Department to establish regulations on the eligibility criteria for such residents and removes the requirement that the funds be limited to the use of senior citizens and persons with disabilities. Lastly, this bill requires the Department to submit expenditure reports annually rather than quarterly.

This bill is effective July 1, 2023.

Roll call on Senate Bill No. 4:

YEAS—41.

NAYS—None.

EXCUSED—González.

Senate Bill No. 4 having received a constitutional majority, Mr. Speaker declared it passed.

Bill ordered transmitted to the Senate.

Senate Bill No. 8.

Bill read third time.

Remarks by Assemblywoman Thomas.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN THOMAS:

Senate Bill 8 designates criminal investigators employed by the Division of Child and Family Services of the Department of Health and Human Services as category II peace officers.

This bill is effective upon passage and approval.

Roll call on Senate Bill No. 8:

YEAS—41.

NAYS—None.

EXCUSED—González.

Senate Bill No. 8 having received a constitutional majority, Mr. Speaker declared it passed.

Bill ordered transmitted to the Senate.

Senate Bill No. 13.

Bill read third time.

Remarks by Assemblyman DeLong.

ASSEMBLYMAN DELONG:

Senate Bill 13 clarifies that employees of a governmental agency who engage in pest control must obtain a license as an applicator from the State Department of Agriculture. The bill also requires that certain records be kept at each place of business at which a person sells or distributes restricted-use pesticides. Finally, SB 13 updates certain references to existing federal law.

This bill takes effect on July 1, 2023.

Roll call on Senate Bill No. 13:

YEAS—41.

NAYS—None.

EXCUSED—González.

Senate Bill No. 13 having received a constitutional majority, Mr. Speaker declared it passed.

Bill ordered transmitted to the Senate.

Senate Bill No. 16.

Bill read third time.

Remarks by Assemblyman DeLong.

ASSEMBLYMAN DELONG:

Senate Bill 16 revises the Charter of Carson City to require the Board of Supervisors to realign the boundaries of city council wards whenever reliable evidence indicates the population of a ward exceeds any other ward by more than 5 percent or the population in a ward exceeds the population in any other ward by more than 5 percent, as determined by the preceding national decennial census.

The measure also clarifies the term of office for members of the Board of Supervisors, extends the time period by which the Board must adopt or reject an ordinance, and provides that the Mayor Pro Tempore shall fill a vacancy in the Office of Mayor for the unexpired term of a former incumbent.

This bill is effective upon passage and approval.

Roll call on Senate Bill No. 16:

YEAS—41.

NAYS—None.

EXCUSED—González.

Senate Bill No. 16 having received a constitutional majority, Mr. Speaker declared it passed.

Bill ordered transmitted to the Senate.

Senate Bill No. 18.

Bill read third time.

Remarks by Assemblyman Nguyen.

ASSEMBLYMAN NGUYEN:

Senate Bill 18 requires each planning commission in a county whose population is less than 100,000—currently, all counties other than Clark and Washoe—to hold at least one regular meeting in each quarter. Each planning commission in a county whose population is 100,000 or more—currently, Clark and Washoe Counties—must still hold at least one regular meeting in each month.

This bill is effective on July 1, 2023.

Roll call on Senate Bill No. 18:

YEAS—41.

NAYS—None.

EXCUSED—González.

Senate Bill No. 18 having received a constitutional majority, Mr. Speaker declared it passed.

Bill ordered transmitted to the Senate.

Senate Bill No. 19.

Bill read third time.

Remarks by Assemblywoman Duran.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN DURAN:

Senate Bill 19 authorizes a board of county commissioners to provide by ordinance for the formation of an unincorporated town that includes territory that is conveyed or transferred to the county or authorized to be conveyed or transferred to the county pursuant to certain federal law or is located not more than one mile from such territory. The bill also makes various related provisions involving public hearings, a town advisory board, corporate limits of a city, and annexation. This bill is effective upon passage and approval.

This measure continues the process to develop the planned Ivanpah Valley Airport, a relief airport for Harry Reid International Airport in the Las Vegas Valley. The planned airport will be located in the Ivanpah Valley of the Mojave Desert in Clark County.

Roll call on Senate Bill No. 19:

YEAS—41.

NAYS—None.

EXCUSED—González.

Senate Bill No. 19 having received a constitutional majority, Mr. Speaker declared it passed.

Bill ordered transmitted to the Senate.

Senate Bill No. 20.

Bill read third time.

Remarks by Assemblywoman Torres.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN TORRES:

Senate Bill 20 creates a process for filling a vacancy on a board of county commissioners.

Roll call on Senate Bill No. 20:

YEAS—31.

NAYS—DeLong, Dickman, Gallant, Gurr, Hafen, Hansen, Hardy, Kasama, Newby, O'Neill—10.

EXCUSED—González.

Senate Bill No. 20 having received a constitutional majority, Mr. Speaker declared it passed.

Bill ordered transmitted to the Senate.

Senate Bill No. 21.

Bill read third time.

Remarks by Assemblyman Carter.

ASSEMBLYMAN CARTER:

Senate Bill 21 revises the classifications of populations in certain provisions of the *Nevada Revised Statutes*.

Roll call on Senate Bill No. 21:

YEAS—41.

NAYS—None.

EXCUSED—González.

Senate Bill No. 21 having received a constitutional majority, Mr. Speaker declared it passed.

Bill ordered transmitted to the Senate.

Senate Bill No. 22.

Bill read third time.

Remarks by Assemblywoman Thomas.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN THOMAS:

Senate Bill 22 authorizes the additional publication of a legal notice or advertisement on the website of a newspaper of general circulation. Any and every legal notice or advertisement published on a website maintained by a newspaper in violation of certain provisions of law is void. This bill is effective on October 1, 2023.

Roll call on Senate Bill No. 22:

YEAS—41.

NAYS—None.

EXCUSED—González.

Senate Bill No. 22 having received a constitutional majority, Mr. Speaker declared it passed.

Bill ordered transmitted to the Senate.

Senate Bill No. 23.

Bill read third time.

Remarks by Assemblyman Gurr.

ASSEMBLYMAN GURR:

Senate Bill 23 authorizes a legislative body of a city whose population is less than 25,000 to amend a redevelopment plan to remove part of a redevelopment area if it determines, following a public hearing, that the removal will not adversely impair any outstanding bonds or securities; the area consists primarily of single-family or multifamily residential dwellings of three stories or less, or both; and the removal is necessary or desirable because it is in the public interest for the purpose of property tax collections. The measure also prohibits a legislative body from amending a redevelopment plan to remove an area if the removal would adversely impair outstanding obligations of any political subdivision of this state or any other public entity.

This bill is effective upon passage and approval.

Roll call on Senate Bill No. 23:

YEAS—41.

NAYS—None.

EXCUSED—González.

Senate Bill No. 23 having received a constitutional majority, Mr. Speaker declared it passed.

Bill ordered transmitted to the Senate.

Senate Bill No. 25.

Bill read third time.

Remarks by Assemblyman Koenig.

ASSEMBLYMAN KOENIG:

Senate Bill 25 requires the State Public Works Division to implement and maintain a long-term plan to address the future need for suitable office spaces for the departments and agencies of the Executive Department of state government.

Roll call on Senate Bill No. 25:

YEAS—41.

NAYS—None.

EXCUSED—González.

Senate Bill No. 25 having received a constitutional majority, Mr. Speaker declared it passed.

Bill ordered transmitted to the Senate.

Senate Bill No. 32.

Bill read third time.

Remarks by Assemblywoman Torres.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN TORRES:

Senate Bill 32 exempts a person or an employee of such person who engages in transporting individuals for the purpose of a temporary transfer of custody pursuant to the Agreement on Detainers or extradition pursuant to the Uniform Criminal Extradition Act, or a temporary or permanent transfer of custody from one state or a local governmental agency to another, from provisions governing private investigators and other related professions.

Roll call on Senate Bill No. 32:

YEAS—41.

NAYS—None.

EXCUSED—González.

Senate Bill No. 32 having received a constitutional majority, Mr. Speaker declared it passed, as amended.

Bill ordered transmitted to the Senate.

Senate Bill No. 87.

Bill read third time.

Remarks by Assemblyman McArthur.

ASSEMBLYMAN MCARTHUR:

Senate Bill 87 authorizes a position in the classified service of the Executive Department of state government to be filled without competition by a person who meets the minimum qualifications for the position and has successfully completed at least 900 hours of service in an AmeriCorps, Youth Conservation Corps, or Job Corps program in this state within the two years prior to applying for the position. The hours of service must be directly related to the position applied for.

Roll call on Senate Bill No. 87:

YEAS—41.

NAYS—None.

EXCUSED—González.

Senate Bill No. 87 having received a constitutional majority, Mr. Speaker declared it passed.

Bill ordered transmitted to the Senate.

Senate Bill No. 117.

Bill read third time.

Remarks by Assemblywoman Peters.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN PETERS:

Senate Bill 117 authorizes the Director of the Department of Health and Human Services to include in the State Plan for Medicaid coverage for the services of community health workers who are supervised by specified types of health care providers other than physicians, physician assistants, or advanced practice registered nurses.

Roll call on Senate Bill No. 117:

YEAS—41.

NAYS—None.

EXCUSED—González.

Senate Bill No. 117 having received a constitutional majority, Mr. Speaker declared it passed.

Bill ordered transmitted to the Senate.

Senate Bill No. 119.

Bill read third time.

Remarks by Assemblyman Hafen.

ASSEMBLYMAN HAFEN:

Senate Bill 119 relates to telehealth and does a lot of good things for continuing telehealth coverage through industrial insurers.

Roll call on Senate Bill No. 119:

YEAS—41.

NAYS—None.

EXCUSED—González.

Senate Bill No. 119 having received a constitutional majority, Mr. Speaker declared it passed.

Bill ordered transmitted to the Senate.

Senate Bill No. 131.

Bill read third time.

Remarks by Assemblywoman Jauregui.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN JAUREGUI:

Senate Bill 131 prohibits health care licensing boards from disqualifying from licensure or disciplining persons for providing or aiding in providing reproductive health care services that are lawful and consistent with professional standards in this state.

Further, the bill prohibits the Governor from surrendering or issuing a warrant for the arrest of a person charged in another state for a crime involving the provision, aid, or receipt of reproductive health care services unless, among other exclusions, the acts also constitute a criminal offense in this state. Lastly, the bill prohibits state agencies from using resources or providing information to support investigations or proceedings from other states related to providing, aiding in providing, or receiving reproductive health care services, except under limited circumstances.

Roll call on Senate Bill No. 131:

YEAS—27.

NAYS—DeLong, Dickman, Gallant, Gray, Gurr, Hafen, Hansen, Hardy, Hibbetts, Kasama, Koenig, McArthur, O'Neill, Yurek—14.

EXCUSED—González.

Senate Bill No. 131 having received a constitutional majority, Mr. Speaker declared it passed.

Bill ordered transmitted to the Senate.

Senate Bill No. 169.

Bill read third time.

Remarks by Assemblyman D'Silva.

ASSEMBLYMAN D'SILVA:

Senate Bill 169 requires the master plan in a county whose population is 100,000 or more—currently, Clark and Washoe Counties—to include a heat mitigation element. The bill also sets forth the requirements for this heat mitigation element, including a plan to develop strategies such as cooling spaces, public drinking water, cool building practices, shade over paved surfaces, and urban tree canopies.

Roll call on Senate Bill No. 169:

YEAS—31.

NAYS—DeLong, Dickman, Gallant, Gray, Gurr, Hafen, Hansen, McArthur, O'Neill, Yurek—10.

EXCUSED—González.

Senate Bill No. 169 having received a constitutional majority, Mr. Speaker declared it passed.

Bill ordered transmitted to the Senate.

Senate Bill No. 210.

Bill read third time.

Remarks by Assemblywoman Torres.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN TORRES:

Senate Bill 210 declares it is the public policy of the state that appointments made by the Governor to boards, commissions, or similar bodies must, to the extent practicable and except as otherwise required by law, represent the diversity of the state and makes other various changes.

Roll call on Senate Bill No. 210:

YEAS—27.

NAYS—DeLong, Dickman, Gallant, Gray, Gurr, Hafen, Hansen, Hardy, Hibbetts, Kasama, Koenig, McArthur, O'Neill, Yurek—14.

EXCUSED—González.

Senate Bill No. 210 having received a constitutional majority, Mr. Speaker declared it passed.

Bill ordered transmitted to the Senate.

Senate Bill No. 214.

Bill read third time.

Remarks by Assemblyman Carter.

ASSEMBLYMAN CARTER:

Senate Bill 214 eliminates the Advisory Committee to the Juvenile Justice Oversight Commission and the Advisory Council on Science, Technology, Engineering and Mathematics. The bill also eliminates the Commission on Educational Technology and instead requires Nevada's Department of Education to establish a plan for the use of education technology in public schools.

Roll call on Senate Bill No. 214:

YEAS—41.

NAYS—None.

EXCUSED—González.

Senate Bill No. 214 having received a constitutional majority, Mr. Speaker declared it passed.

Bill ordered transmitted to the Senate.

MOTIONS, RESOLUTIONS AND NOTICES

Assemblywoman Jauregui moved that Senate Bills Nos. 91, 113, 115, 177, 247, 259, 260, 261, 264, 286, 323, 411, and 433 be taken from the General File and placed on the General File for the next legislative day.

Motion carried.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

There being no objections, the Speaker and Chief Clerk signed Assembly Bills Nos. 2, 19, 21, 24, 40, 43, 47, 73; Assembly Joint Resolution No. 6; Senate Bills Nos. 2, 3, 37, 55, 62, 67; Senate Joint Resolution No. 7 of the 81st Session.

Mr. Speaker announced if there were no objections, the Assembly would recess subject to the call of the Chair.

Assembly in recess at 1:17 p.m.

ASSEMBLY IN SESSION

At 7:21 p.m.

Mr. Speaker presiding.

Quorum present.

REPORTS OF COMMITTEES

Mr. Speaker:

Your Committee on Commerce and Labor, to which were referred Senate Bills Nos. 355, 386, has had the same under consideration, and begs leave to report the same back with the recommendation: Amend, and do pass as amended.

ELAINE MARZOLA, *Chair*

Mr. Speaker:

Your Committee on Education, to which were referred Senate Bills Nos. 114, 196, 292, has had the same under consideration, and begs leave to report the same back with the recommendation: Amend, and do pass as amended.

SHANNON BILBRAY-AXELROD, *Chair*

Mr. Speaker:

Your Committee on Growth and Infrastructure, to which was referred Senate Bill No. 346, has had the same under consideration, and begs leave to report the same back with the recommendation: Amend, and do pass as amended.

HOWARD WATTS, *Chair*

Mr. Speaker:

Your Committee on Judiciary, to which were referred Senate Bills Nos. 14, 61, 63, 104, 211, 309, 321, 322, 368, 407, has had the same under consideration, and begs leave to report the same back with the recommendation: Amend, and do pass as amended.

BRITTNEY MILLER, *Chair*

Mr. Speaker:

Your Committee on Legislative Operations and Elections, to which was referred Senate Bill No. 262, has had the same under consideration, and begs leave to report the same back with the recommendation: Amend, and do pass as amended.

MICHELLE GORELOW, *Chair*

MESSAGES FROM THE SENATE

SENATE CHAMBER, Carson City, May 22, 2023

To the Honorable the Assembly:

I have the honor to inform your honorable body that the Senate on this day passed Assembly Bills Nos. 3, 18, 36, 68, 78, 82, 136, 206, 212, 215, 219, 223, 265, 274, 372, 401, 426.

Also, I have the honor to inform your honorable body that the Senate amended, and on this day passed, as amended, Assembly Bill No. 56, Amendment No. 542; Assembly Bill No. 185, Amendment No. 545, and respectfully requests your honorable body to concur in said amendments.

Also, I have the honor to inform your honorable body that the Senate on this day passed Senate Bills Nos. 285, 449.

Also, I have the honor to inform your honorable body that the Senate on this day passed, as amended, Senate Bills Nos. 273, 339.

SHERRY L. RODRIGUEZ
Assistant Secretary of the Senate

MOTIONS, RESOLUTIONS AND NOTICES

NOTICE OF EXEMPTION

May 22, 2023

The Fiscal Analysis Division, pursuant to Joint Standing Rule No. 14.6, has determined the eligibility for exemption of Assembly Bills Nos. 378, 454.

WAYNE THORLEY
Fiscal Analysis Division

INTRODUCTION, FIRST READING AND REFERENCE

By the Committee on Ways and Means:

Assembly Bill No. 519—AN ACT relating to capital projects; requiring the board of county commissioners of certain counties to levy a property tax for capital projects of school districts; authorizing the board of county commissioners of certain counties to levy a property tax for capital projects of school districts for which a grant is available from the Account to Assist Rural School Districts in Financing Capital Improvements; creating the Account to Assist Rural School Districts in Financing Capital Improvements; making appropriations to the Account; making an appropriation to the Elko County School District for the construction of a school on the Duck Valley Indian Reservation; and providing other matters properly relating thereto.

Assemblywoman Monroe-Moreno moved that the bill be referred to the Committee on Ways and Means.

Motion carried.

By the Committee on Ways and Means:

Assembly Bill No. 520—AN ACT relating to state financial administration; making appropriations from the State General Fund and the State Highway Fund for the support of the civil government of the State of Nevada for the 2023-2025 biennium; providing for the use of the money so appropriated; making various other changes relating to the financial administration of the State; and providing other matters properly relating thereto.

Assemblywoman Monroe-Moreno moved that the bill be referred to the Committee on Ways and Means.

Motion carried.

By the Committee on Ways and Means:

Assembly Bill No. 521—AN ACT relating to projects of capital improvement; authorizing certain expenditures for such projects of the Executive and Legislative Departments of the State Government; levying a property tax to support the Consolidated Bond Interest and Redemption Fund; making appropriations; and providing other matters properly relating thereto.

Assemblywoman Monroe-Moreno moved that the bill be referred to the Committee on Ways and Means.

Motion carried.

By the Committee on Ways and Means:

Assembly Bill No. 522—AN ACT relating to public employees; establishing the maximum allowed salaries for certain state employees; making appropriations from the State General Fund and State Highway Fund for increases in the salaries of and the payment of retention incentives to certain employees of the State; establishing a plan for continuity of service of certain employees of the State; revising provisions relating to the designation of the Legislative Fiscal Officer; eliminating a certain salary limitation; and providing other matters properly relating thereto.

Assemblywoman Monroe-Moreno moved that the bill be referred to the Committee on Ways and Means.

Motion carried.

Senate Bill No. 273.

Assemblywoman Monroe-Moreno moved that the bill be referred to the Committee on Ways and Means.

Motion carried.

Senate Bill No. 285.

Assemblywoman Monroe-Moreno moved that the bill be referred to the Committee on Ways and Means.

Motion carried.

Senate Bill No. 339.

Assemblywoman Monroe-Moreno moved that the bill be referred to the Committee on Ways and Means.

Motion carried.

Senate Bill No. 449.

Assemblywoman Monroe-Moreno moved that the bill be referred to the Committee on Ways and Means.

Motion carried.

GUESTS EXTENDED PRIVILEGE OF ASSEMBLY FLOOR

On request of Assemblywoman Natha Anderson, the privilege of the floor of the Assembly Chamber for this day was extended to the following students, teachers, and chaperones from Procter R. Hug High School: Adamary Sanchez, Aide Navarro, Aislinn Morales, Alessandra Barreintos, Alexander Larsen, Alexys Peril, Aljon Lopez, April Bender, Arianna Vizcarra, Arnold Diaz, Brandon Morales, Briana Almanza, Bryanna Rea Dean, Carlos Ledezma, Castley Cook, Cazandra Gonzalez, Chase King, Ciera Goodwin, Citlali Flores, Cory Mabrier, Crysta Crowley, Damian Pantoja Torres, Daniel Salas, Deneiry Moreno Guzman, Diana Lara, Dyani Ivy, Elizabeth Hernandez Reyes, Ellyoence Burns, Emely Contreras, Emily (Luther) Chaney, Eric Bonilla, Esmeralda Lopez, Evelyn Loya, Francisco Leyva, Gaby Lopez, Giselle Vargas Campos, Haiden Fox-Howells, Hailey Seitz, Ileana Ramirez, Ismael Delgado, Jaime Montero, Javier Benitez, Jayden Segura, Jaz'mine

Cuarda, Jennifer Haro, Jessica Lopez, Joaquin Stancliff, John Roscom, Jonnie Barcenas Quintero, Jorge Gonzales Cortes, Joselyn Lopez Rodriguez, Joseph Riddle, Kaden Dominguez, Karam Ali, Lauren White, Lenore Jensen, Luis Torres, Marlen Vazquez Loera, Meliza Rosa, Mia Sepulveda Rojas, Michael Lui, Michael Zhen Zhen, Michelle Blackshire, Miguel Arana Morelos, Mikala White, Milise Kamuka, Myrna Guerrero, Natalia Montano, Navaeh Johnson, Oswaldo Barboza, Paola Becerra, Prince Buyungan, Richard Garcia Barbosa, Rolyn Tolentino, Ruby Contreras Gonzalez, Sergio Godinez, Sophia Ross, Sulema (Oliver) Benavides, Sunny Parra, Toby Ibach, Yuridia Ramirez, and Zephyr Potter.

On request of Assemblywoman Shea Backus, the privilege of the floor of the Assembly Chamber for this day was extended to Garrick Louie.

On request of Assemblyman C.H. Miller, the privilege of the floor of the Assembly Chamber for this day was extended to Jeremy Renner.

On request of Assemblyman Duy Nguyen, the privilege of the floor of the Assembly Chamber for this day was extended to Cuong Nguyen and Hoan Vu.

On request of Assemblyman Philip P.K. O'Neill, the privilege of the floor of the Assembly Chamber for this day was extended to the following students, teachers, and chaperones from Bordewich Bray Elementary School: Abraham Zohgra-Awali, Adolpho Orozco, Aiden Caldwell, Aiden Dominguez, Aiden Littlejohn-Phillips, Aimen Littlewolf, Amani Walters, Amelia Schnaible, Ardyn McLaughlin, Ariella Lizarraga, Arturo Ortega, Athena Hellwinkel, Aubrey Kasecky, Aubriana Marriott-Siffel, Ava Claridge, Beau Phillips, Caden McGarvey, Cameron King, Canon Kingman, Carmella Bailey-Pitts, Catalina Chaparro, Chandler Stock, Clayton Ramm, Coraline Bustamante, Damian Salas, Daniel Cruz Montes, Elodie Paslov, Emmett Rowdon, Enoch Williams, Ethan Lopez, Ethan Ramos Vazquez, Faith Richards, Fernando Fernanda, Finley Handelin, Gavin Beck, Gracie Lynn De Leon, Griffin Shaw, Haidyn Smith, Isaack Foxon, Jacob Higgins, James Pardee, Jarren Ortega, Jeremiah Santacruz-Angel, Jeremy Bernuy, Jordan Morow, Jose Cabrera-Avina, Josias Lainez, Kai Campbell, Kai Ruthenbeck, Kaiya Querin-Fuller, Karma Repine, Kayleb Gauss, Kaylee Andersen, Kelly Penafiel, Khloe Hopkins, Kimberly Zepeda Carmona, Kristopher Cruz, Landon Berg, Lewis Perry, Liam Maze, Lucille Freitas, Madden Swanson, Madison Camper, Madison Leija, Madison Royce, Makaiyah Breiling, Markus Elizarraraz, Melissa Gallegos Rodriguez, Meredith Schuft, Mia Garnett, Molly Alotta, Nailea Ochoa Rodriguez, Natalie Ross, Nathan Gonzalez, Nayelin Gonzalez, Nekolas Bowers, Nicolaas Plummer, Paigelyn Miles, Pedro Conchas Ledezma, Rhys Heath, Roxanne Rose, Rylan Myler, Sadie Parr, Taneah Gonzalez, Tyriq Reddick, Vera Slater, Wade Helmers, Walter White, Xaden Arechiga, Yasmmina Interiano and Zitlalic Ponce.

Assemblywoman Jauregui moved that the Assembly adjourn until Tuesday, May 23, 2023, at 11:30 a.m.

Motion carried.

Assembly adjourned at 7:29 p.m.

Approved:

STEVE YEAGER
Speaker of the Assembly

Attest: SUSAN FURLONG
Chief Clerk of the Assembly